Minutes

School of Business March 24, 2019

Attendance: Kandy Ockree, Rob Hull, Sungkyu Kwak, David Sollars, Dmitri Nizovtsev, Reza Espahbodi, Norma Juma, Shane Van Dalsem, David Price, Russ Smith, Gail Hoover King, Pam Schmidt, Akkadian Harnowo, Rick LeJuerne, Tom Hickman, Stoica, Bob Boncella, Rosemary Walker, Paul Byrne, Louella Moore

- 1. Minutes of Jan 23, 2019 were approved
- 2. Deans Notes
 - a. Schedule meeting with Jennifer for Annual Reports
 - b. April 17 Beta Gamma Sigma dinner
 - c. April 18 Scholarship Luncheon
 - d. Summer/Fall enrollment is now and Fall starts next week
 - e. Commencement May 11
- 3. Motion to approve the SOBU online course policy (Dmitri Nizovtsev, Michael Stoica, motion passed)
- 4. Motion to approve BU248 as a general elective
 - a. This is a special topic for Fall 2019
 - b. Motion to close discussion (Dmitri, Bob)
 - c. Motion to suspend second reading (Bob, Pam, motion carries)
 - i. It doesn't require EC211 to make it more available to outside the business program
 - ii. Eventually this would be a pre-requisite to BU 250, if it becomes a required course
 - d. Motion approved
- 5. Motion to adjourn, Stoica

Minutes

School of Business Faculty Meeting April 30, 2019

Attendance: Paul Byrne, Reza Espahbodi, Akkadian Harnowo, Tom Hickman, Gail Hoover King, Sungkyu Kwak, Rick LeJuerne, Louella Moore, Dmitri Nizovtsev, Kanalis Ockree, David Price, Sunita Rao, Pam Schmidt, David Sollars, Michael Stoica, Shane Van Dalsem, Rosemary Walker, Rob Weigand,

- 1. Minutes of March 21, 2019 were approved
- 2. Deans Notes
 - a. Undergrad MFT 89th percentile
 - b. Entrepreneurship program Business Plan Competition held
 - c. NiBs competition made it to the finals May 8-9
 - d. Scholarship Luncheon: Dion got Teaching Award, Rosemary got Research Award
 - e. University Awards: Norma Myer's award for research excellence
 - f. Shane granted tenure, Byrne promoted to Professor
 - g. Reza will retire after this semester
 - h. Ball was named Interim Assistant VPAA
 - i. Computer monitor software in lab will monitor student computers
 - j. This summer they are replacing the windows on second and third floor (boxes in HC116). You must clear off your desk.
 - k. Tuesday Updated pictures for those that need or want it.
 - I. Grades due May 15 at 10:00 a.m.
- 3. Old Business
 - a. None
- 4. New Business
 - Motion to approve changes to the SOBU Mission Statement (Motion: Dmitri, Second: Stoica, first reading)
 - i. Change the wording of the "respect for diversity" bullet point and change the bullet point to "Fosters integrity, inclusiveness, mutual respect, and ethical behavior as requisites to business practice;" possible change in wording.
 - ii. Diversity is put into the language because of AACSB language.
 - b. Motion to approve the School of Business Governance Document (Motion: Dmitri, Second: Stoica, first reading)
 - c. Elections:
 - i. Faculty Chair Sungkyu Kwak,
 - ii. Secretary Rosemary Walker
 - iii. Representative for Faculty Senate Shane Van Dalsem
 - iv. University Assessment Committee Tom Hickman* until Curriculum committee chair is elected
 - v. Undergraduate Probation and Reinstatement Shane Van Dalsem
 - vi. University Program Review Michael Stoica
 - vii. Honorary Degree Rob Weigand
 - d. Assessment Report
 - i. Not meeting expectations in: Information Systems
- 5. Motion to adjourn, Stoica

Our Mission:

We provide **high quality business education**, supported by **research** and **service** activities, that enhances the **economic vitality of the region**.

The school:

- Offers current, student-centered degree programs at the undergraduate and graduate level for students that will prepare them for career success and life-long learning in a global society;
- Engages in research that enhances our classroom teaching, assists practitioners, and advances knowledge in business disciplines;
- Fosters integrity, mutual respect for diversity, and ethical behavior as requisites to business practice;
- Prepares students to make informed decisions in a data rich environment an increasingly globalized economy;
- Serves as a catalyst for economic development of the region through our Small Business Development Center, the Washburn Entrepreneurship Program, and other collaborative partnerships; and
- Provides faculty, staff, and student service to professional and civic organizations.

Washburn University Faculty Handbook Section 8 Revisions April 2019

School of Business

V. Governance Structure of the School of Business

The governance structure consists of the Dean, Associate Dean, directors, the Faculty Chair, committees, and the faculty as a whole. The Dean is the executive officer for the School of Business and reports to the Vice-President for Academic Affairs (see Section 1.V.D). The Associate Dean's responsibilities are assigned by the Dean. Both the MBA and MAcc programs have faculty directors. The Associate Dean, program directors, Director of Student Affairs, and the Director of the Washburn University Kansas Small Business Development Center report to the Dean. The Dean and Associate Dean work with the faculty committees, the Faculty Chair, and Directors to accomplish the goals and objectives of the School.

Committees act as advisory to the Dean and also review (and/or initiate) various proposals and initiatives. Their proposals and reports are referred to the Faculty, Coordinating Committee, or Dean as appropriate.

Present Committees are:

- Coordinating
- Planning and Review
- Student Affairs
- Curriculum
- Faculty and Personnel
- Promotion and Tenure (ad hoc)
- Task

The chairpersons of the Planning and Review, Curriculum, Student Affairs, and Faculty and Personnel Committees are elected by the members of the respective committees. The Chairperson of each

committee is usually a carry-over member. Appropriate membership is determined by the Coordinating Committee.

The School also has a major nonacademic unit, the Washburn University Kansas Small Business Development Center. The WUKSBDC functions include training programs, counseling and research and information services. There are important areas of interaction between the WUKSBDC and faculty such as serving as consultants and instructors for training programs.

A. Committee Purposes and Responsibilities

The general purpose of all committees is to establish and modify policies and processes for adapting and responding to the dynamic internal and external operating environment of the School of Business, including compliance with AACSB standards. Committees may solicit input from School of Business stakeholders. Other duties may be assigned to the Committees as needed by the coordinating committee or the Dean.

1. Coordinating Committee

The Coordinating Committee is composed of the Dean, Associate Dean, and Faculty Chairperson, Graduate Program Directors, the Chairpersons of the Planning and Review, Curriculum, Student Affairs, and the Faculty and Personnel Committees. The Dean serves as Chair of this Committee.

The Coordinating Committee is primarily responsible for developing, implementing, evaluating and modifying the processes for:

- 1. Nominating School of Business committee membership (subject to faculty approval).
- 2. Coordinating the activities of all committees.
- 3. Ensuring committee compliance with the School of Business mission statement and committee responsibilities.
- 4. Responding to unforeseen issues as appropriate.

2. Planning and Review Committee

Planning and Review Committee is primarily responsible for the processes of developing, reviewing, modifying, and monitoring the implementation of the School's

- 1. Mission statement.
- 2. Strategic plan.
- 3. Academic programs.
- 4. Compliance with AACSB Standards related to Mission and Strategic Management.

3. Student Affairs Committee

This committee is primarily responsible for developing, implementing, evaluating, and modifying the processes for:

- 1. Marketing and recruiting new students, and placement of graduating students.
- 2. Maintaining and reviewing academic and behavioral standards for students.
- 3. Advising students.
- 4. Awarding scholarships to students.
- 5. Encouraging development of School of Business Student Organizations
- 6. AAACB Standards compliance related to Student Affairs

4. Curriculum Committee

This committee is primarily responsible for:

- 1. Reviewing and making recommendations to the faculty for the graduate and undergraduate curriculum.
- 2. Evaluating all new program proposals, course proposals and revisions and making recommendations to the faculty
- 3. Evaluating course content as it relates to Student Learning Outcomes (SLOs), and documenting compliance with the School of Business Assurance of Learning process.
- 4. Evaluating course content to ensure consistency in the core courses.
- 5. Preparing and reporting the SOBU annual assessment report.
- 6. Documenting compliance with and reporting on AACSB Standards as related to Curriculum and Assurance of Learning Standards.

5. Faculty and Personnel Committee

This committee is primarily responsible for:

- 1. Developing and modifying processes and procedures for appointment, evaluation, and tenure and promotion of faculty.
- 2. Developing, maintaining, and promoting programs that enhance faculty performance.
- 3. Review and maintenance of the School's Journal Quality List.
- 4. Periodically evaluating and refining procedures for recruitment and retention of faculty.
- 5. Monitoring the AACSB Standards related to faculty and personnel issues and recommending changes in SOBU policies and procedures to ensure compliance with those standards
- 6. Promotion and Tenure Committees (Ad hoc)

Committees are created, as needed, according to the School's Promotion and Tenure policies.

These committees are primarily responsible for reviewing applications for tenure/promotion of faculty members.

- 1. Review applications for tenure/promotion of faculty members.
- 2. Provide individual, written recommendations to the Dean for approval or rejection of applications for promotion/tenure.
- 3. The senior ranking member of the Committee will normally serve as Chair of the Committee

7. Task Committees

These committees will be formed to perform specific duties. Task committee duties will be a subset of the assigned activities of one or several permanent committees and will require oversight by the permanent committees. Any member of the administration or faculty of the School of Business can propose a task committee by presenting a written proposal to the Coordinating Committee for approval. The proposal must include: a. the specific responsibilities, outcomes, and name of the proposed task committee, b. the reporting relationship of the task committee with pertinent permanent committees, and c. the expected duration of the task committee. Task Committees will be established only after approval of the Coordinating Committee. The

chair and the members of the committee will be solicited and appointed by the Coordinating Committee. A Task committee will disband after the assigned task is complete

B. Selection of Committees

The Coordinating Committee offers nominations for committee positions on the Planning and Review, Curriculum, Student Affairs and Faculty and Personnel committees in the Fall semester for the academic year. The nominations are presented to the whole faculty for amendment as necessary and approval. Committee assignments are reviewed on an annual basis, with a comprehensive review to occur every five years. Faculty preferences will be considered when assigning committee membership.

Promotion and Tenure committees are established annually. Individual committee membership will be in accordance with Section III.B.4d. The Associate Dean will call an organizational meeting of eligible committee members.

C. Faculty Meetings

The Faculty Chairperson is elected by all full-time faculty in the spring semester for the following academic year.

The Faculty Chairperson presides over all faculty meetings.

Faculty meetings can be called by any of the following:

- 1. The Dean of the School of Business
- 2. The Faculty Chairperson
- 3. At least three faculty members.

In faculty meetings, the faculty:

- 1. Receive reports from the Dean and others.
- 2. Review proposals forwarded by School committees, and provide approval recommendations to the Dean.
- 3. Elect the faculty chairperson and SOBU representatives on the Faculty Senate and University-wide committees.

School of Business August 22, 2019

Attendance: Bob Boncella, Paul Byrne, Liviu Florea, Akkadian Harnowo, Tom Hickman, Gail Hoover King, Rob Hull, Norma Juma, Sungkyu Kwak, Rick LeJuerne, Jim Martin, Louella Moore, Dmitri Nizovtsev, Kanalis Ockree, David Price, Sunita Rao, Pam Schmidt, Barbara Scofield, Manaf Sellak, Russ Smith, David Sollars, Michael Stoica, Shane VanDalsem, Rosemary Walker, Rob Weigand

- 1. Minutes of April 30, 2019 were approved
- 2. Dean's Notes
 - a. Welcome New Faculty
 - i. Manaf Sellak Visiting Economics Professor
 - ii. Jayme Burdiek Teaching finance/management
 - b. Promotions
 - i. Professor Byrne
 - ii. Associate Professor VanDalsem
 - c. Enrollment is down SOBU 8% down
 - d. 2.5% salary program was approved
 - e. 1st Floor renovation program
 - i. Modern restroom facilities
 - ii. New sitting area
 - f. New computer program
 - g. Self Study year write the self study this year
 - i. Draft Committee reports Dec. 1
 - ii. Handouts given
 - 1. White paper of AOL
 - 2. Updated standards
 - iii. Team has been nominated and not yet announced
 - h. Student Perception Survey
 - i. Take SIR-II questions and put them in the system
 - ii. D2L or cell phone link
- 3. Old Business
 - a. Revision of the mission statement
 - i. Motion to approve the changes to the SOBU Mission Statement with the changes listed in ii below (Motion: Dmitri Second Tom, motion approved)
 - ii. Wording change is "respect for diversity" bullet point and change the bullet point to "Fosters integrity, inclusiveness, mutual respect, and ethical behavior as requisites to business practice;" The change in wording is considered a friendly amendment.
 - b. Motion to approve the School of Business Governance Document (Motion: Dmitri, Second: Stoica,)
 - i. Top of second page, 2nd paragraph
 - 1. "WUKSBDC functions include training programs, counseling and research, and information services." Add the comma after research.
- 4. Motion to adjourn, Stoica

Our Mission:

We provide **high quality business education**, supported by **research** and **service** activities, that enhances the **economic vitality of the region**.

The school:

- Offers current, student-centered degree programs at the undergraduate and graduate level for students that will prepare them for career success and life-long learning in a global society;
- Engages in research that enhances our classroom teaching, assists practitioners, and advances knowledge in business disciplines;
- Fosters integrity, inclusiveness, mutual respect, and ethical behavior as requisites to business practice; and ethical behavior as requisites to business practice;
- Prepares students to make informed decisions in a data rich environment;
- Serves as a catalyst for economic development of the region through our Small Business
 Development Center, the Washburn Entrepreneurship Program, and other collaborative
 partnerships; and
- Provides faculty, staff, and student service to professional and civic organizations.

Washburn University Faculty Handbook Section 8 Revisions April 2019

School of Business

V. Governance Structure of the School of Business

The governance structure consists of the Dean, Associate Dean, directors, the Faculty Chair, committees, and the faculty as a whole. The Dean is the executive officer for the School of Business and reports to the Vice-President for Academic Affairs (see Section 1.V.D). The Associate Dean's responsibilities are assigned by the Dean. Both the MBA and MAcc programs have faculty directors. The Associate Dean, program directors, Director of Student Affairs, and the Director of the Washburn University Kansas Small Business Development Center report to the Dean. The Dean and Associate Dean work with the faculty committees, the Faculty Chair, and Directors to accomplish the goals and objectives of the School.

Committees act as advisory to the Dean and also review (and/or initiate) various proposals and initiatives. Their proposals and reports are referred to the Faculty, Coordinating Committee, or Dean as appropriate.

Present Committees are:

- Coordinating
- Planning and Review
- Student Affairs
- Curriculum
- Faculty and Personnel
- Promotion and Tenure (ad hoc)
- Task

The chairpersons of the Planning and Review, Curriculum, Student Affairs, and Faculty and Personnel Committees are elected by the members of the respective committees. The Chairperson of each committee is usually a carry-over member. Appropriate membership is determined by the Coordinating Committee.

The School also has a major nonacademic unit, the Washburn University Kansas Small Business Development Center. The WUKSBDC functions include training programs, counseling and research, and information services. There are important areas of interaction between the WUKSBDC and faculty such as serving as consultants and instructors for training programs.

A. Committee Purposes and Responsibilities

The general purpose of all committees is to establish and modify policies and processes for adapting and responding to the dynamic internal and external operating environment of the School of Business, including compliance with AACSB standards. Committees may solicit input from School of Business stakeholders. Other duties may be assigned to the Committees as needed by the coordinating committee or the Dean.

1. Coordinating Committee

The Coordinating Committee is composed of the Dean, Associate Dean, and Faculty Chairperson, Graduate Program Directors, the Chairpersons of the Planning and Review, Curriculum, Student Affairs, and the Faculty and Personnel Committees. The Dean serves as Chair of this Committee.

The Coordinating Committee is primarily responsible for developing, implementing, evaluating and modifying the processes for:

- 1. Nominating School of Business committee membership (subject to faculty approval).
- 2. Coordinating the activities of all committees.
- 3. Ensuring committee compliance with the School of Business mission statement and committee responsibilities.
- 4. Responding to unforeseen issues as appropriate.

2. Planning and Review Committee

Planning and Review Committee is primarily responsible for the processes of developing, reviewing, modifying, and monitoring the implementation of the School's

- 1. Mission statement.
- 2. Strategic plan.
- 3. Academic programs.

4. Compliance with AACSB Standards related to Mission and Strategic Management.

3. Student Affairs Committee

This committee is primarily responsible for developing, implementing, evaluating, and modifying the processes for:

- 1. Marketing and recruiting new students, and placement of graduating students.
- 2. Maintaining and reviewing academic and behavioral standards for students.
- 3. Advising students.
- 4. Awarding scholarships to students.
- 5. Encouraging development of School of Business Student Organizations
- 6. AAACB Standards compliance related to Student Affairs

4. Curriculum Committee

This committee is primarily responsible for:

- 1. Reviewing and making recommendations to the faculty for the graduate and undergraduate curriculum.
- 2. Evaluating all new program proposals, course proposals and revisions and making recommendations to the faculty
- 3. Evaluating course content as it relates to Student Learning Outcomes (SLOs), and documenting compliance with the School of Business Assurance of Learning process.
- 4. Evaluating course content to ensure consistency in the core courses.
- 5. Preparing and reporting the SOBU annual assessment report.
- 6. Documenting compliance with and reporting on AACSB Standards as related to Curriculum and Assurance of Learning Standards.

5. Faculty and Personnel Committee

This committee is primarily responsible for:

- 1. Developing and modifying processes and procedures for appointment, evaluation, and tenure and promotion of faculty.
- 2. Developing, maintaining, and promoting programs that enhance faculty performance.
- 3. Review and maintenance of the School's Journal Quality List.

- 4. Periodically evaluating and refining procedures for recruitment and retention of faculty.
- 5. Monitoring the AACSB Standards related to faculty and personnel issues and recommending changes in SOBU policies and procedures to ensure compliance with those standards
- 6. Promotion and Tenure Committees (Ad hoc)

Committees are created, as needed, according to the School's Promotion and Tenure policies.

These committees are primarily responsible for reviewing applications for tenure/promotion of faculty members.

- 1. Review applications for tenure/promotion of faculty members.
- 2. Provide individual, written recommendations to the Dean for approval or rejection of applications for promotion/tenure.
- 3. The senior ranking member of the Committee will normally serve as Chair of the Committee

7. Task Committees

These committees will be formed to perform specific duties. Task committee duties will be a subset of the assigned activities of one or several permanent committees and will require oversight by the permanent committees. Any member of the administration or faculty of the School of Business can propose a task committee by presenting a written proposal to the Coordinating Committee for approval. The proposal must include: a. the specific responsibilities, outcomes, and name of the proposed task committee, b. the reporting relationship of the task committee with pertinent permanent committees, and c. the expected duration of the task committee. Task Committees will be established only after approval of the Coordinating Committee. The chair and the members of the committee will be solicited and appointed by the Coordinating Committee. A Task committee will disband after the assigned task is complete

B. Selection of Committees

The Coordinating Committee offers nominations for committee positions on the Planning and Review, Curriculum, Student Affairs and Faculty and Personnel committees in the Fall semester for the academic year. The nominations are presented to the whole faculty for amendment as necessary and approval. Committee assignments are reviewed on an annual basis, with a comprehensive review to occur every five years. Faculty preferences will be considered when assigning committee membership.

Promotion and Tenure committees are established annually. Individual committee membership will be in accordance with Section III.B.4d. The Associate Dean will call an organizational meeting of eligible committee members.

C. Faculty Meetings

The Faculty Chairperson is elected by all full-time faculty in the spring semester for the following academic year.

The Faculty Chairperson presides over all faculty meetings.

Faculty meetings can be called by any of the following:

- 1. The Dean of the School of Business
- 2. The Faculty Chairperson
- 3. At least three faculty members.

In faculty meetings, the faculty:

- 1. Receive reports from the Dean and others.
- 2. Review proposals forwarded by School committees, and provide approval recommendations to the Dean.
- 3. Elect the faculty chairperson and SOBU representatives on the Faculty Senate and University-wide committees.